
 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, March 17, 2015, 9:00 a.m. 

Benton County Planning Annex 
1002 Dudley Avenue 

Prosser, WA 
 
Present: Chairman Jerome Delvin 
  Commissioner  Shon Small 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Public 
Works Manager Daniel Ford; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor 
Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Bob Woody, IT 
Department; GIS Manager Mary Phillips; Clark Posey, Planning; Judge Robert Swisher; 
Superior Court Administrator Pat Austin; Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office; Frank Wolf, Pest 
Control; Fred Bowen, Public Works; Linda Robb, Human Services Manager; Assessor Bill 
Spencer; Paul Schut, Financial Analyst.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of March 10, 2015 were approved.   
 
Review Agenda 
 
Items “c” and “d” were pulled for discussion at a later date.    
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “n”, 
pulling, “c” and “d”.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the 
following: 
 
Auditor 

a. Management Letter to Washington State Auditor’s Office 
Commissioners   

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0305-101, Dept. 000 
Juvenile 

e. Flat Monthly Payments for the 2015 Juvenile Center Operations Budget & Facilities 
Budget 



 - 2 - 

Office of Public Defense 
f. Amended Juvenile Public Defense Agreement w/H Villani  

Personnel 
g. Payment Authorization to Penser for Unemployment Claims Management Services 

Pest Board 
h. Appointment of D Murray to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board 
i. Appointment of J Lunden to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board  
j. Appointment of K Christensen to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board 

Sheriff 
k. Contract Extension w/LexiNexis for External Hard Drive Prison Solutions  
l. Lease Agreement w/MailFinance, Inc for Postage Meter & Scale  
m. Contract Amendment w/Keefe Commissary for Inmate Commissary Services 

Treasurer 
n.  Increase in Petty Cash Funds  

 
Public Hearing - Community Development Block Grant  
 
Linda Robb said this was the annual visit for the Community Development Block Grant for 
CDBG for public service activities in coordination with Benton Franklin Community Action 
Committee.  She said the grant provided services to low income housing community residents 
living in the rural areas so they didn’t have to travel to the Tri-Cities.   
 
Commissioner Small asked what the percentage difference was between Benton and Franklin 
Counties.  Judith Gidley said it was probably 30% in Franklin County and 70% in Benton 
County and it covered non-entitlement areas.   
 
Ms. Robb said the idea was to reach out to those folks in rural areas.  Additionally, the monies 
were not co-mingled and there was an accounting of the services provided.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, the public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the Resolution authorizing the Application 
for Community Development Block Grant Public Service Funds.  Commissioner Beaver 
seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Introduction of New Road Superintendent 
 
Dan Ford introduced Fred Bowen (former Franklin County Administrator) as his new Road 
Superintendent.  He said in addition to his experience as a county administrator, Mr. Bowen had 
11 years’ experience in Public Works.  The Board welcomed Mr. Bowen to Benton County.   
 
  



 - 3 - 

Other Business 
 
MATRICS  
 
Chairman Delvin said he attended a meeting on this issue and left with more unanswered 
questions than he went to the meeting with.  He said it appeared everything would be determined 
at a later date.  He said if they didn’t sign it, nothing would change because SECOMM would 
still be operating.  He mentioned that Commissioner Peck told him he was taking a leap of faith 
on this issue.  Additionally, the cities didn’t seem to think they could come to agreement on the 
bylaws and incorporation.  He said it would not take effect until the articles of incorporation and 
bylaws were agreed to so he wondered why they would sign this. 
 
Commissioner Beaver said that Franklin County and Pasco needed to come up with some money 
to invest and until somebody showed up with some equity, he was not going down that road; he 
didn’t know how Benton County could pay for Franklin County stuff.  
 
Chairman Delvin said that Franklin County would have to upgrade their system to get into 
Benton County’s system and he didn’t think they should have to pay for that.  He commented 
that he didn’t know if it would fall apart if they didn’t sign.  
 
Commissioner Beaver said they were being asked to be a 20% partner with 50% assets.  
Chairman Delvin said he didn’t have a problem with the assets because it was all public money 
but his concern was voting rights in the future.  Additionally, he was concerned about public 
perception that this was Benton County’s fault if it didn’t happen.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said he did not want to subrogate the County’s financial responsibility to a 
committee; the other agencies had ample time and opportunity to sign an interlocal to use Benton 
County’s system.   
 
Commissioner Small agreed they were given the opportunity to be a customer over three years 
ago.  However, some of the funds for the assets were received from FEMA.  He said he didn’t 
know how it would be done, but agreed it would increase the public safety and asked what is the 
price of a life.  
 
Chairman Delvin said he wanted a unanimous vote to move forward but if that didn’t happen, he 
didn’t know what to do.  He said he was asking Commissioner Beaver if he would take a leap of 
faith with him and sign this that nothing would happen until the bylaws and articles of 
incorporation were agreed to.  Additionally, if the cities were going to have city managers be part 
of this, he recommended letting Benton County administration do it.  Mr. Sparks said they could 
work in conjunction with one of the Commissioners and be there to advise them.  He said if 
Franklin County had a commissioner, then Benton County should probably have a 
Commissioner in the group.  
 
Commissioner Beaver said if Chairman Delvin wanted to go down that road, then he would go.  
Chairman Delvin said he would tell them none of this would take effect until the articles and 
bylaws were agreed to by all parties.   He said he would work on a resolution for the agreement.   



 - 4 - 

 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:27 a.m. 
 
Executive Session 
 
The Board went into executive session with DPA Steve Hallstrom at 9:27 a.m. for up to 30 
minutes to discuss the Board’s position on a grievance and discuss a union contract update.   
Also present were Ryan Brown, Loretta Smith Kelty, David Sparks, and Cami McKenzie.  The 
Board came out at 9:45 a.m.  The Board discussed the collective bargaining position of the 
County and position or strategy on a grievance position.  No decisions were made.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the Employer’s Step 3 Response to the 
Sheriff’s Guild Grievance.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
David Sparks said that Judge Swisher had requested the Board postpone signing the consent 
agenda letters “c” and “d” to Franklin County until the April 7 meeting.   
 
Executive Session – Performance of a Public Employee 
 
The Board went into executive session at 9:48 a.m. for five minutes to discuss the performance 
of a public employee. Present were DPA Steve Hallstrom, DPA Ryan Brown, Loretta Smith 
Kelty, David Sparks and Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out at 9:53 a.m.  No decisions were 
made. 
 
Other Business 
 
Chairman Delvin said when he was in Olympia he talked with a senator about mental health 
issues and the proposed modification to the Benton County jail.  He said he made a suggestion 
that they wait to see if the Courts made the State come up with more money to house these 
individuals at the state hospitals.   
 
Ryan Brown discussed the court case and said it had to do with having enough mental health 
evaluations so inmates could get their due process (and it could reduce the County’s population 
to a certain degree).   
 
Chairman Delvin said maybe they wanted to wait before spending money on the jail 
modifications, particularly with the diversion program and new mental health court.   
 
Commissioner Small said he would caution against that because the jail modifications would 
also help the staff with suicide watch.  Commissioner Beaver said he thought they would need it 
anyway, regardless of what the State did, and wanted to move forward and accommodate the 
Sheriff with the clientele and issues currently going on in the jail.   
 
  



 - 5 - 

Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 03/05/2015 
 
Warrant #: 238268-238343 
Direct Deposit #102142-102739 
Total all funds: $2,111,206.77 
 
Payroll Deductions – Transfers 
Taxes #10115031-101150314 
Total all funds:  $1,769,914.41 
 
Payroll Deductions – Warrants 
Warrant #: 118013-118027 
Total all funds: $358,495.73 
 
Check Date:  03/13/2015 
Procurement Cards #: 0315, 031501 
Total all funds: $243,702.67 
 
Check Date: 03/16/2015 
 
Payroll Draw Checks 
Warrant #: 238344-238351 
Direct Deposit #102743-102931 
Total all funds: $100,453.96 
 
Payroll Draw Deductions – Transfers 
Taxes #: 101150315 
Total all funds:  $33,133.39 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2015-211: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0305-101, Dept. 000 
2015-212: Flat Monthly Payments for the 2015 Juvenile Center Operations Budget & 

Facilities Budget 
2015-213: Amended Juvenile Public Defense Agreement w/H Villani  
2015-214: Payment Authorization to Penser for Unemployment Claims Management 

Services 
2015-215: Appointment of D Murray to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease 

Board 
2015-216: Appointment of J Lunden to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease 

Board  



 - 6 - 

2015-217: Appointment of K Christensen to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease 
Board 

2015-218: Contract Extension w/LexiNexis for External Hard Drive Prison Solutions  
2015-219: Lease Agreement w/MailFinance, Inc for Postage Meter & Scale  
2015-220: Contract Amendment w/Keefe Commissary for Inmate Commissary Services 
2015-221: Increase in Petty Cash Funds  
2015-222: Community Development Block Grant 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:59 
a.m. 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 


	Approval of Minutes
	Review Agenda

	Other Business
	Vouchers


